SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
March 13, 2014
9:11 a. m

9:11: 40 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Meyer called the Senate Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 9:11 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Pete Kelly, Co-Chair

Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair

Senat or Anna Faircl ough, Vice-Chair
Senator dick Bishop

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny d son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Senator Lesil MQuire; Bill Pedlar, Chair, Governnent
Rel ations Committee, Alaska Travel |Industry Association;
Robbi e G aham Assi st ant Conmi ssi oner, Departnent  of
Commerce, Community and Econom c Devel opnent; Chris Pel oso,
Attorney, Departnent of Law, Juneau; Christine Marasigan,
Staff, Senator Kevin Meyer; Amanda Ryder, Fiscal Analyst,
Legi sl ative Finance D vision; Senator John Coghill; Leslie
Hust on, Deputy Comm ssi oner, Departnent of Corrections.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Bernard Washington, Anchorage, State Assessnent Review
Board; Hilary Martin, Legislative Legal Services, Juneau.

SUMVARY
SB 64 OWNI BUS CRI ME/ CORRECTI ONS BI LL

CS SB 64 (FIN) was REPORTED out of conmittee with
a "do pass" recommendation and wth previously



publ i shed zZero fiscal not es: FN: 8( ADM ,
FN: 9(ADM), FN:10(ADM, FN 11(LAW, FN 12(GOV);
three new fiscal inpact notes from the Senate
Finance Conmittee; new fiscal inmpact note from
the Departnent of Corrections; new fiscal inpact
note from the Alaska Court Systenm and new zero
fiscal note fromthe Al aska Court System

SB 194 TOURI SM MARKETI NG BOARD

SB 194 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for
further consideration.

NCONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS

9:14:10 AM

Co-Chair Meyer stated that M. Dennis Mndell withdrew his
confirmation.

BERNARD WASHI NGTON, ANCHORAGE, STATE ASSESSMENT REVI EW
BOARD (vi a tel econference), introduced hinself.

Co-Chair Meyer asked M. Wshington to elaborate on his
request for confirmation. M. Wshington explained that he
submitted his name, because he believed that Al askans mnust
participate in the process. He felt that his expertise
woul d be inportant for the board.

Co-Chair Meyer asked if this was a nonpaid position. M.
Washi ngton replied in the affirmative.

Co-Chair Meyer wondered if M. Washington was currently
enpl oyed by the nmedia, in public radio and television. M.
Washi ngton responded in the affirmative.

Co-Chair Meyer asked if served on the Assessnment Review
Board. M. Wshington replied that there were efforts to
ensure that there were no overt conflicts.

Senator O son wondered what qualifications that M.
Washi ngton would bring to the position. M. Washington
expl ai ned that he spent 35 years in the oil industry. The
ast 15 years of his career, he served in the pipeline
area. He was responsible for the Trans Alaska Pipeline
System (TAPS) evaluation, tariffs, and cost analysis of
reconfiguration projects. He was involved in the Al pine and

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 2 03/13/14 9:11 A M



Kuparuk Pipelines, and conducted evaluation and tariff
anal ysis for those pipelines.

Senator O son queried M. Wshington's position on Judge
G eeson's decision regarding the controversy on the
pi peline project evaluation. M. Wshington responded that
there the uncertainties increased as the |life of an asset
like TAPS went beyond 15 years. One of the biggest
uncertainties was related to where the crude would
originate that would, hopefully, fill the line. If the
crude was off-shore, and the environnmental considerations
like the warnming of the Arctic Ccean presented thensel ves,
opportunities for noving crude would becone available. He
felt that assessnents nust be nade regarding potential
transportation opportunities with respect to the value of
TAPS.

Senator dson queried M. Wshington's experience wth
natural gas, and his thoughts on the current Al aska Liquid
Natural Gas (AK LNG proposed project. M. Washington
replied that there should be a focus on how the AK LNG
project would conpete in the global nmarket. He stressed
that Al aska had a hi gher cost overall, because the pipeline
was going to be very long in order to reach tide water.
O her places in the world had nore readily accessible
transportation systens. He stressed that Alaska nust pick
the right time slot to bring the gas to market.

9:19:25 AM

Senator O son asked if M. Wshington had |ived anywhere
else in Al aska, besides Anchorage. M. Wshington stated
that he had lived in Anchorage since 1962, and has not
lived el sewhere since.

Co-Chair Meyer stated that he knew M. Washi ngt on
personal ly, and stressed that he was not a typical "oil
executive." He felt that the candi date was experienced, and
remarked that he was also very active in the community. He
wondered what boards and comm ssions M. Wshington had
served. M. Wishington replied that he was the treasurer
for the Board for Beans; the treasurer for the Al aska
Community Foundation; the chair of the Public Facilities
Conmi ssion in the Minicipality of Anchorage; the chair of
the Health and Human  Services Comm ssi on in the
Muni cipality of Anchorage; and the treasurer of the Foraker

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 3 03/13/14 9:11 A M



Group. He felt that one must serve the public for the
greater good of society.

Senator Hoffrman noticed that the candidate had listed the
Al aska Permanent Corporation and the Regul atory Conm ssion
of Alaska (RCA) as other board interests. M. Wshington
responded that he would be interested in the opportunity,
if it presented itself. He stressed that he enjoyed the
analysis of funding and financing in the oil and gas
i ndustry.

Co-Chair Kelly comrented that there was not a high | evel of
scrutiny about considering and confirmng the governor
appoi ntees. He remarked that judges were not appointed by
t he people, so he would like the people to el ect judges.

9: 26: 03 AM

Senator Bishop wondered if M. Wshington had worked on
TAPS. M. Washington replied in the affirmative.

Senator Bishop asked if M. Wshington had worked on the
strategic reconfiguration of TAPS. M. Wshington replied
in the affirmative.

Senat or Bishop asked if the strategic reconfiguration plan
of TAPS added value to TAPS. M. Washington replied that
the work gave TAPS the ability to handle varying crude
anounts. The old punps were a specific speed, and the
variation in crude supply was nore difficult to handle. He
stated that the electric punps were installed to deal wth
a w der range of variation and throughput.

9:27:43 AM
AT EASE

9:29: 00 AM
RECONVENED

9:29: 07 AM

Vice-Chair Fairclough MOVED ADVANCE the NAME of Bernard
Washington to appointnment to the State Assessnment Review
Board. There being NO OBJECTION, it was so ordered.

Co-Chair Meyer stated that the signing of the report did
not reflect the individual nenber's approval or disapproval

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 4 03/13/14 9:11 A M



of the appointees, and the nomi nations were forwarded to
the full | egislature for confirmation or rejection,
according to Uniform Rul e 46.

9:30: 01 AM
AT EASE

9:31:46 AM
RECONVENED

#sb194
SENATE BI LL NO. 194

"An Act creating the Al aska Tourism Marketing Board
and relating to tourism marketing."

9:32: 22 AM

SENATOR LESIL MCGU RE, explained SB 194. She referred to
t he Sponsor Statenent (copy on file).

SB 194 creates a structure for marketing by the State
of Al aska and develops a funding intent fornula that
can be support ed by t he | egi sl ature, t he
admnistration, and the private sector, so that
tourismmarketing is professionally | ed and managed.

The Al aska tourism board would be created in statute
and conprised of a mnimum of twenty one nenbers.
Ei ghteen of those would be recommended by ATIA one
menber of the board from the Departnent of Commerce
Community and Econonmi ¢ Devel opnent, one nenber woul d
be appointed from the House, and one nenber appointed
fromthe Senate.

Tourism continues to be a growi ng, renewable industry
that is the second | argest enployer in the state. Over
1.9 mllion visitors canme to Al aska from Cctober 2012-
Sept enber 2013 spending over 1.8 billion dollars. This
bill is an inportant step in continuing the growh of
one of our nost inportant industries.

Senator MQ@iire noted that tourism in Alaska was a
statewi de issue. The marketing for a tourist across the
state varied area to area, and there were different
categories for each tourist.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 5 03/13/14 9:11 A M



Senator McQuire noted that there was a zero fiscal note,
because there was noney that was already allocated to cover
the cost of tourismmarketing in the state.

Senator McQ@uire outlined the sections of the bill. Section
1 addressed the purposes of the board, which stated that
expansion and growmh of the state's visitor industry wll
benefit all of Al aska. She stated that the TAPS revenue was
declining, and the benefits for increasing new devel opnent
were still unknown. She stressed that Al aska nust continue
to diversify its econony. She shared that the board woul d
help to increase the nunber of job opportunities and
training for Al askans. Section 2 formalized t he
rel ati onship between Departnment of Conmerce, Community and
Econom ¢ Devel opnent (DCCED) and the board. She stated that
there were different governors with different enphases over
the years. The section's intent was to ensure that the
board would stay intact through perpetuity. Section 3 set
up the board. There would be at Ieast three nom nees
submtted by Alaska Travel Industry Association (ATIA),
because there was an effort to not politicize the board.
The board's focus would be tourism marketing for Al aska.
The board would neet at least twice a year. She |ooked at
page 4, which addressed the rotation of terns to reflect
some institutional know edge. There would be six nenbers
who woul d serve three terns; six nmenbers serving two terns;
and six nenbers serving for one term

9:39:34 AM

Co-Chair Meyer stated that the commttee was apprehensive
about creating new boards and comm ssions. He felt that
this board seened to be different, and that the tourism
i ndustry should be exploited. He wondered if the sponsor
woul d be anmenable for a sunset date and allow the board to
be audited. Senator McGQuire replied in the affirmative.

Co-Chair Meyer |ooked at page 4, and noted there were 21
nmenbers, and wondered what woul d happen to the other three.
Senator MQuire explained that those three nenbers would
foll ow their appointnent.

Co-Chair Meyer noted that he was wunsure about the
comm ssi oner appoi ntnents. Senator MCQuire stated that the
DCCED comm ssioner or their designee should be a constant
presence on the board.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 6 03/13/14 9:11 A M



Co-Chair Meyer queried the effective date. Senator MQ@iire
responded that the effective date woul d be based on whet her
the industry would want an i nedi ate effective date.

Co-Chair Kelly looked at Section 3, and appreciated the
val ue of elected individuals in choosing appointed
i ndi vi dual s.

9:44: 28 AM

Senator O son felt that a large board would result in a
cunber sonmre work, and work may be slowed down because of so
many personalities. Senator McQiire replied that there was
often an exclusion of one region or a type of tourism
operator. She felt that including all aspects of the
i ndustry was essential to the functioning of the board.

Senator Hof fman | ooked at page 2, line 31, and noted that
18 menbers woul d represent different regions of the state.
He wondered if there could be an additional |anguage that
specifies, "including, but not |imted to, the Arctic, the
Interior, the Southcentral, Southeast, and Southwest."
Senator McCQuire replied that she would |ove to include that
speci ficati on.

Senator Bishop would Ilike sonme assurance that the 18
menbers held sonme smaller operators as well. Senator
McGQuire replied that the intent was to include sonme smaller
busi nesses, and many letters of support indicated simlar
requests for inclusion on the board.

9:49: 10 AM

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough | ooked at page 3, line 16, and noted
the requirenent for a quorum She wondered if that would
create a challenge depending on travel. She felt that the
guorum may be hard to reach, because of the |arge nunber of
menbers and possible conflicts or constraints. Senator
McGQuire replied that she was open to the change in |anguage
related to quorum requirenents.

Senator MQiire explained that travel and per diem were

only paid for the tw legislative nenbers and the
conmmi Ssi oner.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 7 03/13/14 9:11 A M



Bl LL PEDLAR, CHAIR, GOVERNMENT RELATI ONS COW TTEE, ALASKA
TRAVEL | NDUSTRY  ASSCCI ATI ON, i ntroduced hinself. He
testified in support of SB 194, and renarked that diversity
in the travel industry made the industry very strong. He
felt that the marketing board should represent that
diversity. He stressed that the industry was careful to not
get too specific. He remarked that achieving a quorum had
never been a problem He felt that the size of the board
allowed for a wide range of inputs and values related to
Al aska tourism

Senator O son queried the M. Pedlar's opinion on inserting
a sunset into the legislation. M. Pedlar responded that
that it was good business to include a sunset date, because
everyt hi ng deserves to be revi ewed.

9:55: 43 AM

Senator O son queried a fair nunmber of years to determ ne
the effectiveness of the board. M. Pedlar replied that a
five or six year w ndow would be prudent. He stated that
mar keti ng had a cunul ative effect.

Vice-Chair Fairclough remarked that there was sonetines
hesitation in setting the sunset date too far ahead
initially, in order to prevent bad habits. She wanted to
ensure public participation, neeting notification, and
handling the investnent properly. She supported a sooner
sunset date of the board. She furthered that there were
different ways of establishing quorums on boards, and
remarked that |egislative nenbers may need to address state
busi ness of greater priority. She wondered if a quorum may
be nmet by requiring at |east one nenber of each region
attending the neeting, rather than basing a quorum on a
majority of participants. M. Pedlar replied that nine
voting menbers attending would be fine for a quorum He
furthered that he had been involved in cooperative
marketing in his career, and had never had an issue in
establishing a quorum He stressed that the industry
nmenbers would pay their owm way to attend the neetings,
whi ch indicated a high |l evel of commtnent.

10: 00: 32 AM

ROBBI E GRAHAM ASSI STANT COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT  OF
COMVERCE, COMMUNITY AND ECONOM C  DEVELOPMENT, ( DCCED)
stressed that It was i nportant to recognize the

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 8 03/13/14 9:11 A M



coll aboration with the state and the travel industry. She
shared that there was a recent, formal collaboration
t hrough a Menorandum of Understanding (MOU) that was signed
in FY 12 and reiterated in FY 13. She felt that she and the
DCCED conmm ssioner were uniquely qualified to inplenment the
program based on their experiences in the tourismindustry.
She stated that the tourism nmarketing program was in the
D vision of Econom c Devel opnent, and she pointed out the
expertise of the | eaders of those prograns.

Ms. Graham highlighted sone of the acconplishnments of the
tourism industry marketing program She stated that summer
visitation had reached simlar nunbers to 2007 and 2008 at
1.96 mllion visitors. The annual conversion rate was 12
percent, and pointed out that over a four year period there
was 30 percent conversion rate. The state had generated 16
mllion through the public relations program and Al aska
tourism pronotions were recently published in the New York
Ti mes and ot her broadcast and social nedia. She stated that
there was a cultural tourism program and focused on
Nort hwest Al aska. There was a novenent to take the program
statewide in the next years. There were internationa

efforts that were enacted to enhance the 2014 season.

CHRIS PELGSO, ATTORNEY, DEPARTMENT OF LAW JUNEAU,
expl ai ned sonme technical problens with the bill. He | ooked
at page 2, line 30, which read, "four nenbers from ATIA "
He stated that traditionally bills did not highlight a
specific organization. He |ooked at I|anguage in AS
43.98.040 which involved a simlar organization. That
statute stated that "the menbers be nomnated from the
| eading nonprofit trade association.” He felt t hat
specifying a specific organization runs the risk of
invalidating the statute, if the organization is dissolved
at any tinme. He also |ooked at page 3, line 9, Section 3
which gave power to appoint menbers of the board to a
private organization and only gave the governor a form a
veto of the recomendations. He felt that it was an
unconstitutional limtation of the governor's authority.
Under the Alaska Constitution, the governor was the only
appointing authority, wunless expressly addressed in the
constitution itself. The legislature could no nore provide
to the governor to share power with an agency created by it
than it can share the power itself. He suggested that the
ability to appoint nenbers solely rested with the governor.

10: 08: 21 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 9 03/13/14 9:11 A M



Vice-Chair Fairclough requested anended | anguage. M.
W son suggested that the |anguage read, "have the governor
appoi nt nenbers."

Co-Chair Meyer wondered if M. Mirtin agreed with the
per spective of M. Pel oso.

H LARY MARTIN, LEQ SLATIVE LEGAL SERVICES, JUNEAU (via
tel econference), replied that nam ng the organi zati on was a
decision that the legislature should make. She understood
the concern regarding changing the statute, if ATIA were
di ssolved. She felt that there was no clear answer
regarding submtting a list of requested individuals for
t he governor to choose from

Senat or Dunl eavy asked if boards existed with the simlar
processes outlined in the legislation. Ms. Martin asked for
clarity of the question.

Senator Dunleavy asked if the governor traditionally
appointed individuals based on a list of recomendations.
Ms. Martin replied that she believed that there were other
boards that submtted lists, but she could not name those
boar ds.

Co-Chair Meyer encouraged the sponsor to work with the
Department of Law to ensure the constitutionality of the
| egislation. Senator MQiire replied that she was unaware
of the opinion of the Departnent of Law. She announced t hat
Legi sl ative Legal had approved the draft, and was wlling
to anend the |anguage to the |eading nonprofit in the
industry. Regarding to the appointnents, she was willing to
say that the |ist was recommendations. She stressed that
the recomendations mnust be submtted by the public to
ensure transparency.

SB 194 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

10:16: 05 AM
AT EASE

10: 17: 28 AM
RECONVENED

10: 17: 48 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 10 03/13/14 9:11 A M



RECESS

5:14:52 PM
RECONVENED

#sbh64
SENATE BI LL NO 64

"An Act establishing the Al aska Sentencing Conm ssion

relating to jail-tinme credit for offenders in court-
ordered treatnent prograns; allowing a reduction of
penalties for offenders successfully conpleting court-
ordered treatnent prograns for persons convicted of
driving while wunder the influence or refusing to

subnmt to a chemcal test; relating to court
termnation of a revocation of a person's driver's
license; relating to Iimtation of drivers' |icenses;

relating to conditions of probation and parole; and
providing for an effective date."

5:15:31 PM

Co-Chair Kelly MWED to ADOPT the proposed conmttee
substitute for CS SB 64 (FIN, Wrk Draft 28-LS0116\L
(Gardner, 3/12/14). There being NO OBJECTION, it was so
or der ed.

CHRI STI NE MARASI GAN, STAFF, SENATOR KEVIN MEYER, renarked
that the nost substantial change was in the CS was addi ng
the Alaska Crimnal Justice Commission as it was in the
original version. She pointed out that the comm ssion was
increased from 10 to 12 nenbers. In the original 12 nenbers
there were two |legislators from each body, this was reduced
by two, so there was only one legislator from the senate
and one | egislator fromthe house.

Co-Chair Meyer surmised that the nenbership was reduced
from12 to 10. Ms. Marasigan agreed.

Ms. Marasigan shared that the second significant date was a
sunset date in 2018, which was contingent on an audit,
which was the third change in the CS. The only other
changes were small editorial changes that were addressed
while waiting for the fiscal changes.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 11 03/13/14 9:11 A M



Co-Chair Meyer wondered if there were conversations wth
the sponsor's office regarding the changes. M. Marasigan
replied in the affirmative.

Co-Chair Meyer stated that the sponsor was present. He
asked for explanation of the new fiscal notes. He wondered
if there were any questions fromcommttee nenbers.

Senator O son stated that he had some questions regarding
the Alaska Crimnal Justice Conm ssion.

Ms. Marasi gan expl ai ned the fiscal notes.

5:20: 14 PM
AT EASE

5:23:37 PM
RECONVENED

Ms. Marasigan referred to a conparison sheet that outlined
the differences between the old fiscal notes and new fisca
notes (copy on file).

Co-Chair Meyer wondered if the fiscal note for 2015 had
been reduced from $6.9 mllion to $3.2 nmllion. M.
Marasigan replied in the affirmative.

Co-Chair Meyer surmsed that the fiscal note for 2016 had
been reduced from $7.4 mllion to $3.8 mllion. M.
Mar asi gan agr eed.

Co-Chair Meyer noted that the nunber of positions was
reduced from 23 through 34 to 17 through 28. Ms. Marasigan
agr eed.

Co- Chair Meyer wondered how those reductions affected the
program He assunmed the program was still intact, but the
nunbers were noved from Departnent of Health and Soci al
Services (DHSS) and Departnent of Corrections (DOC). M.
Mar asi gan agreed. She explained that the DHSS had nore
infrastructures to deal wth the grant recidivism fund,
w sh prograns in place to absorb sone of those costs.

Vice-Chair Fairclough wondered how the $4 nmllion in

program receipts were affected by the legislation. M.
Mar asi gan deferred to Ms. Ryder.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 12 03/13/14 9:11 A M



5:28:25 PM

ANMANDA RYDER, FI SCAL ANALYST, LEG SLATIVE FI NANCE DI VI SI ON
(LFD) explained that the program receipt funds were
possibly over-inflated. The fiscal notes were a nore
accurate reflection of the program

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough asked if the inter-agency receipts on
the fiscal note were intended for the health position. M.
Marasigan replied in the affirmative. She stated that there
was an existing program for testing that would be
contracted out for services.

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough wondered if there was enough capacity
inside the budget to spend the extra noney wthout
addi ti onal appropriation power. M. Mrasigan replied that
the current programwas in three different communities, and
the program would be phased in. She renmarked that the
pur pose of the programwas to reduce recidivism

Co- Chair Meyer asked if the sponsor was supportive of the
changes in the |egislation.

5:33:18 PM

SENATOR JOHN COGHI LL, responded that he was in support of
the legislation. He shared that he would continue to work
on the licensing provisions, but could not be included in
the current version of the |egislation.

Senator O son queried the reason why a task force or audit
capability could not take the place of the conm ssion,
rather than another financial burden. Senator Coghill
understood that concern. He felt that a group nust be
organi zed to represent the best in the industry including
superior and suprenme court justices; public defenders;
prosecut ors; and individuals in the Alaska Native
popul ation to ensure that the best efforts were practiced
under the rigid sentencing |aws. He felt that the
commi ssion nust be highly professional in order to deliver
the nost informed recomendations related to ensuring
public safety and exam ning sone flexibility in the current
| aws.

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough |ooked at the conbined total of new
travel of over $50,000. She asked for explanation of the

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 13 03/13/14 9:11 A M



ongoing travel funding. M. Mrasigan deferred to M.
Hust on.

LESLI E HUSTON, DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF
CORRECTI ONS, assuned the question was related to the
$23,000 in travel in association with the inplenentation of
PACE for probation and parole statewide. The funds were
necessary for the response for the swift, certain, and
short-term of f enders.

Vice-Chair Fairclough stressed that there was an addition
of $50,000 worth of new travel. Ms. Huston only saw $23, 000
in travel.

Vice-chair Fairclough renmarked that the new travel costs
i ncl uded nore departnents than just DOC.

5:41: 55 PM
AT EASE

5:43: 03 PM
RECONVENED

Vice-Chair Fairclough MOVED to REPORT CS SB 64 out of
committee W th i ndi vi dual recommendat i ons and t he
acconpanyi ng fiscal notes. There being NO OBJECTIQN, it was
so order ed.

CS SB 64 (FIN was REPORTED out of conmittee with a "do
pass" recomendation and wth previously published zero
fiscal notes: FN 8(ADM, FN 9(ADM, FN 10(ADM, FN: 11(LAW,
FN: 12(G0V); three new fiscal inpact notes from the Senate
Finance Conmmittee; new fiscal impact note from the
Department of Corrections; new fiscal inpact note from the
Al aska Court System and new zero fiscal note from the
Al aska Court System

#
ADJ QURNVENT
5:46:51 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 5:46 p.m

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 14 03/13/14 9:11 A M



